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History of the Navy Entomology Center of Excellence
                      1947-2012
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Following WWII, only a handful of entomologists remained on active duty. The Navy Medical Department disbanded the H-V(S) section and established the Medical Service Corps in 1947. Most of the Navy Epidemiology Units were also disestablished after the war. One that remained was the Malariology and Pest Control Unit located at Naval Air Station Banana River, Florida. Establishment of this unit would mark the beginning of over 60 years of mission growth and evolution. 
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NAS Banana River, FL located just north of Satellite Beach was the site of the Navy’s first Malariology and Pest Control Unit 

In 1947, the Malariology and Pest Control Unit was re-located to Naval Air Station Jacksonville, Florida and commissioned the Malaria and Mosquito Control Unit No. 1 on July 1, 1949 with LCDR John M. Hirst (Navy entomologist) assigned as the first Officer in Charge. In 1952, the Unit was renamed Preventive Medicine Unit No. 1 (PMU-1). 
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Malaria and Mosquito Control Unit No1, NAS Jacksonville, FL 

PMU-1 became the Disease Vector Control Center (DVCC) in 1957 assigned an expanded mission and area of operation to include roughly half the world. During the same year, a sister unit was established in Alameda, California (DVCC-Alameda) and assigned responsibility for supporting the remaining portion of the globe. The accomplishments of the Disease Vector Control Center, Jacksonville, were captured in the following article which appeared in the JAX Air News documenting their 8 year anniversary. 
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JAX DVC Center Surveys Proud Past; Eyes Future on Eighth Anniversary
JAX Air News: 26 JULY 1956 
Eight years ago in July 1949, the present Disease Vector Control Center was commissioned by the Navy as its first permanent Malaria and Mosquito Control Unit. 

“Malmos No. 1,” as it became known, was not much of a unit numerically speaking. Under the direction of able Lcdr. John M. Hirst, who had fought for its existence ever since the Navy’s wartime insect control units had been generally disbanded with the close of hostilities, it consisted of a small space located in the NAS JAX Dispensary and, in addition to the Office-in-Charge, a staff of three enlisted men and a clerk-typist, Mrs. Sara F. Atlee. 

Mrs. Atlee, who last week won a commendation from Lcdr. Francis R. DuChanois, present Officer-in-Charge, hadn’t thought much of mosquitoes when she first joined the unit in 1948, before it was even commissioned. But she soon found mosquitoes were a fascinating subject, and the work being done by the unit of extreme importance not only to the Navy but to almost every Federal agency. 

For one thing, the unit was pioneering in the development of automatic aircraft disinfestation. Ultimately it succeeded in having aerial disinsection equipment, devised in its own laboratory, installed in overseas military aircraft and in hospital planes used in evacuating the wounded from Korea. 

Further, a portable type insecticide dispersal gear, which could be jettisoned by the pilot if he needed to disencumber his plane for combat, was successfully tested on F4U and AD1 type aircraft operating locally from the deck of the carrier USS Leyte. 

Secondly, the unit was a research center where many of the then new insecticides were first tested and tried. 

Thirdly, it was a training center for Reserve entomologists, doctors and public works personnel of all military forces, who came here for refresher courses from all parts of the nation. 

Shortly after Dr. Hirst was relieved in 1952 by Lcdr. Kenneth L. Knight, Malmos No. 1 was redesignated Preventive Medicine Unit No. 1, thus becoming linked with six similarly designated units supported by the Navy. However, it retained its early individual mission while carrying out additional duties within the Sixth Naval District and Caribbean areas. 

In 1952, it tackled a project for converting Todd Type E smoke generators installed on the fantails of destroyers during the war for laying passive defensive smoke screens, into insecticide dispersal equipment. Resulting was a multi-purpose insecticide dispersing machine now known as “MIDA” used for residual spraying, misting and wet o dry dusting. 

A second machine converted from the smoke generators is used today for both soil poisoning and surface treatments in termite control operations. 

All this was achieved mainly by the Testing and Developing Section. But the Operations Section of the unit also was capturing laurels. During the Kansas City flood of 1951, personnel of the unit were sent to assist in emergency insect and rodent control. 

Within 24 hours of receiving the dispatch from the Bureau of Medicine and Surgery, two planes loaded with insecticide spray equipment and men were underway to “K.C.” where stockyards and business areas were under water. Many animals were drowned, causing widespread decomposition and breeding millions of disease bearing flies. 

Among those who went was Lt Joseph G. Mc Williams, now head of the operations section. 

On call around the clock, the operations section is still called upon to conduct field inspections, surveys and investigation of vector problems such as recently occurred in Putnam County when it was infested with mosquitoes. On request of Senator George Smathers, the unit sent planes and men into the area to conduct aerial spraying to help relieve the situations. 
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JAX DVC personnel inspecting an aerial insecticide application unit mounted on a F4U Corsair, 1949
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In 1971, both units were renamed as Navy Disease Vector Ecology and Control Centers (DVECC). Both DVECCs and the Navy Environmental and Preventive Medicine Units (NEPMUs), where entomologists were also stationed, became Echelon 4 commands under the Navy Environmental Health Center (NEHC), Norfolk, Virginia in 1985. DVECC Alameda would move to Navy Submarine Base, Bangor Washington in 1995 and re-named DVECC Bangor. However, as part of a NEHC re-organization initiative in 2005, DVECC Bangor and NEPMU 7, Sigonella, Italy, were disestablished. DVECC Jacksonville assumed responsibility for providing disease vector control and prevention support world-wide. However, this would not be the end of change. 
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DVECC Bangor, NSB Bangor, Washington
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The Navy Entomology Center of Excellence, NAS Jacksonville, FL

In 2005, the Navy Entomology Center of Excellence (NECE) was established, replacing DVECC JAX. As the only command of its kind in the Department of Defense, NECE not only provides operational support and training, but is also responsible for testing and evaluating novel pesticide application technology and techniques for efficacy and military applicability. To accomplish this mission, NECE has cultivated collaborative relationships with a variety of civilian and government agencies, including the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC), the United States Department of Agriculture, Agricultural Research Service laboratories in Gainesville, FL and College Station, TX and universities as part of the Armed Forces Pest Management Board’s (AFPMB) Deployed War-fighters Protection Program (DWFP).
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